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Watkins, Robert

From: Watkins, Robert
Sent: Wednesday, September 18, 2019 2:15 PM
To: 'lcoile@glaveandholmes.com'
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: September BAR Action - 1824 University Circle

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 
BAR 19-09‐02 
1824 University Circle, Tax Parcel 060097000          
Jake Rubin, Owner/Applicant  
Modifications to Pergola  
 
Dear Applicant, 
 
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of 
Architectural Review (BAR) on September 17, 2019. A motion to approve your application was included in the 
meeting’s consent agenda. BAR member Carl Schwarz moved to approve the consent agenda and Breck 
Gastinger seconded. The BAR approved the consent agenda (9-0). The following is the text of the motion to 
approve your application: 
 

Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design Guidelines 
for Site Design and Elements, the BAR finds that the modifications to the pergola satisfy the 
BAR’s criteria and are compatible with this property and other properties in the Rugby Road-
University Circle-Venable ADC District, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted. 

 
If you would like to hear the specifics of the discussion, the meeting video is on-line at:  
http://charlottesville.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1387 
 
This certificate of appropriateness shall expire in 18 months (March 17, 2021), unless within that time period 
you have either been issued a building permit for construction of the improvements if one is required, or if no 
building permit is required, commenced the project. You may request an extension of the certificate of 
appropriateness before this approval expires for one additional year for reasonable cause. (See City Code 
Section 34-280. Validity of certificates of appropriateness.) 
 
Sincerely, 
Robert Watkins 
 
Robert Watkins 
Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner 
Neighborhood Development Services 
PO Box 911 
Charlottesville, VA 22902 
(434) 970-3398 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE 

BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 

STAFF REPORT  

July 16, 2019 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

BAR 18‐04‐04  

1824 University Circle 

Tax Parcel 060097000 

Jake Rubin, Owner/Applicant 

Modifications to Pergola 

 

 
 

Background 

Designed by Eugene Bradbury and constructed in 1913 for Dr. S. H. Watts, Professor of Surgery 

and Gynecology at UVA, 1824 University Circle is a contributing property in the Rugby Road-

University Circle-Venable ADC District. This two-story, Vernacular English Revival-style 

dwelling is now a student center.  

 

Prior BAR Actions 

April 17, 2018 – BAR approves (6-0) restoration plans, new landscaping, and a new pergola for 

the subject building. 

 

July 16, 2019 – BAR approves modified pergola post profile on the consent agenda. 

 

August 2019 – Staff reviewed with the BAR additional revisions to the pergola design. BAR 

found the modifications acceptable, but requested the changes be formally submitted for 

approval as a Consent Agenda item. 

 

Application 

Applicant Submitted: 

 Glave & Holmes Architecture submittal dated August 5, 2019 (one page). 

 

Omit the previously approved stone and stucco bases to the square pergola posts. The square post 

profiles continue to the pavers. No changes are proposed to the approved purlins and rafters. 

 

Discussion 

The pergola is a new element at the site. The original design reflected the existing Doric columns 

on the building, however the proposed changes are not incompatible with the design and scale of 

the existing structure.  Staff recommends approval.  
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Suggested Motions 

Approval: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design 

Guidelines for Site Design and Elements, I move to find that the modifications to the pergola 

satisfy the BAR’s criteria and are compatible with this property and other properties in the 

Rugby Road-University Circle-Venable ADC District, and that the BAR approves the 

application as submitted.  

 

(or with the following modifications…)  

 

Denial: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design 

Guidelines for Site Design and Elements, I move to find that the proposed modifications to the 

pergola do not satisfy the BAR’s criteria and are not compatible with this property and other 

properties in the North Rugby Road-University Circle-Venable ADC District, and that the BAR 

denies the application as submitted. 

 

Criteria, Standards, and Guidelines 

Review Criteria Generally 

Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that, in considering a particular application the BAR shall 

approve the application unless it finds: 

(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or 

applicable provisions of the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to 

Sec.34-288(6); and 

(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the 

district in which the property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the 

application. 

 

Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include: 

(1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed 

addition, modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with the 

site and the applicable design control district; 

(2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and 

placement of entrances, windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs; 

(3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of 

Federal Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant; 

(4) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood;  

(5) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as 

gardens, landscaping, fences, walls and walks; 

(6) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an 

adverse impact on the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures; 

(7) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines. 

 

Pertinent Guidelines on Site Design and Elements 

G. Garages, Sheds, & Other Structures 

  









      

Brody Jewish Center, 1824 University Circle — Rear Terrace Pergola 

Revised posts with stone/stucco bases  - BAR approval July 16, 2019 

Proposed revision: omit stone/stucco bases  -  August 5, 2019 
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